


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of THE MOTWANE MANUFACTURING COMPANY pVT.
LTD.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of THE
MOTWANE MANUFACTURING COMPANY PVT. LTD ("the Compdny"), which
comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch,2O2L, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
statement and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information ("the standalone financial statements").

In my opinion and to the best of my information and accor:ding to the
explanatlons given to me, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with. the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2Ot5, as amgnded, ("Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 3!, 2021, and its profit , total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. My
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of
my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the standalone
fiqancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit
evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of
most significance in my adOit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period. I have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in my report"



Infonmation Other than the Standalone Financial Staternents and
Auditor's R.eport Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for. the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in Board's
Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the standalone financial statements does hot cover the other
information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the standalone financial statements, ffiy
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or my knowledge obtained during the course of my audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; I am required to report that fact. I have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.



Auditor's Responsibility for the Rudit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

My objectives is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance/ but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, . and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevqnt to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act; I am also responsible for expressing my
opinion on whether the. Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention
in my audit reporE to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation,' structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. I consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of my audit work and in evaluating the results of



my work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
standalone financial statements.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my
audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a staternent that I have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in
my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest ben.efits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on my audit I reporL that :

a.

b.

d.

e.

f.

I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of my knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of
my audit.

In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

In my opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2OL4.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on March3t,202L taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as. on March 3L, 202t from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section L64 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to my separate Report. My report expresses an

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.



9.

h.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
explanations given to me, the remunerations paid by the company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
L97 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2OL4, as amended in my opinion and to the best of my information and
according to the explanations given to me :

i. As per the information given the company does not have pending
litigations.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts; as such the question of commenting on any
material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. Investor education and protection fund is not applicable to the
cornpany.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the
Order") issued by the Central Governrnent in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, I give in an annexure, a statement on the matters' specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Chartered Accountant
Proprietor
Membership No. 08643

Place: Nashik
Date : 2gthJune 2O2L
UDIN : 21OO8643AAAA8A6646



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in panagraph 1 (f)under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory' Requirements' section of my repoft of even date on the Standalone Financial
StAtEMENtS Of THE MOTWANE MANUFACTURING COMPANY PVT. LTD. as at and
for the year ended 31st March, 2O2t

Repor-t on the Internal Financia! Controts Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section L43 of the Companies Act, 2Ot3 (*the Act")

I have audited the internal financial controls over financlal reporting of T}IE MOTWANE
MANUFACTURING CO.PVT;LTD (l'the Company") as of 31st March, 2O2L in
conjunction with my audit of the standalone financial staternents of the Company for the
year ended
on that date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controts

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and rtaintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal . control over financial reporting criteria
estabtished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on 'Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities inclr.rde the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
flnancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the order.ly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of :its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibit ity

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the'internal financial controls over financial
rebortihg of the CompanlT based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with
the Guidance [\ote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finincial Repor:ting (the
'lGuidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of thO,ia anO-tne
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those'Standards and the
Guidance Nbte require that I comply with eth.ical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was estabtished and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial Controls systern over financial reportipg and their operating
effectiveness. My audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
proqedurgs selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
r.isks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls. system over
financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company''s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perrnit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use/ or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material eflect on the financial statements.

Inhbrent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. AIso,
projections bf any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion, to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the criteria for
internal financial control over financial reporting established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accciuntants of India.

Chaftered Accountant
Proprietor
Membership No. 08643

Place: Nashik
Date : 29th June 2O2L



1.

THE MOTWAIIE MANUFACTURING CO. PVT. LTD.

AI\NEXURE: REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF MY REPORT OF EVEN DATE

In respect offixed assets:

a. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. As explained to me, all the assets have been physically verified. by the
. management at the end of the year. According to the information and

explanations given to me no discrepancies have been noticed on such physical
verification as compared with the book records.

c. According to the information and explanation given to me, and on the basis of
my examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company except one property - the
details of which are given in Note No.2 ( in Assets Schedule).

In respect of inventory:

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year.
In case of stock lying with third parties, certificates confirming the stock held
have been received. In my opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable.

b. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory.

The company had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act ')

The Company had not granted any loans nor has given any guarantees or security -
hence the compliance as per provisions of section 185 is not applicable. In relation to
Investment made - the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186.

According to the information and explanation given to me, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public. Therefore, the provisions.of clause (v) of
paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable to the Company

It is informed that the provisions of maintenance of Cost Records as prescribed by the
Central Government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

J.

4.

5.

Page 1 .--*---^*
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7. a. According to the information and explanations given to me and
the books and records examined by me, the company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State rnsurance, Income Tax-TDS, Sales Tax r vAT,
Service Tax, Goods & service Tax, customs Duty, Excise Drrty, cess and other
statutory dues witkr the appropriate authorities except fbr a few delays. It is
informed that there are no such dues as at 3l't March 2021 outstanding for a period' exceeding six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to information and explanations given to me there are no disputed
amounts outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax / VAT, Service Tax,
Goods & Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty & Cess as at the last day of
financial year

Based on my audit procedures and the information and eSplanations given by the
management, I am of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to financial institution/bank during the year. The Company has neither taken any
loans from Government nor has it raised money by way of issue of debentures.

The company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Loans taken during the year were
utilized for the purpose for which they were taken.

According to the information and explanations provided to me, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been nbticed or repofted
during the year.

. According to the information and explanations provided to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid I provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 rcad with schedule V to the Act.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to me, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, parugraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, all the transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of thi Act, where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the accounting

H[ to the information and explanations provided to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. During the year - company has not raised money by way
of issue of shares.

8.

10.

11.

12.

13,

t4.

---* Page 2



15. According to the information and explanations provided to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him" Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

L6. The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-LAof the Reserve Bank
of India Act,1934.

PLACE: NASHIK
DATE: 29th June202l CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

MEMBERSHIP NO. 8643.

Page 3



BAUG, NASHIK ROAD, B.com(Hons), F.c.A.
101 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

'Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other lntangible assets
Financial Assets

lnvestment
Trade Receivables
Others Financial Assets
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax assets (Net)
Other Non-current assets

2,46,25,426
6,50,000

4,07,54,135

2,87,64,425

46,82,S60
16,43,386
1,87,246

18,1 9,386

2,69,92,444
3,50,000

3,81,74,817'

59,04,1 1 1

32,33,466
1,87,246
4,02,749

lnventories
Financial Assets

lnvestment
Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Others Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets

10,00,25,694

8,93,80,264
21,78,206

2,65,20,481
13,O4,011

82,94,240

10,98,'1 0,420

8,15,24,543
45,17,303

3,29,04,561
3,39,718

1 ,17,47 ,407

Financial Liabilites
Borrowings

Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions
Other non-current liabilities

1,96,98,557

5,52,500
37,88,367

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payables
Other current liabilities
Provision

16,16,61,353
4,17,68,867
1,72,76,826

13,13,12,575'
4,79,50,274
3,16,78,167

r ' F'*"-ry
RA AGRAWAL S.M, DAGA \./

MANAGING DIRECTOR CHARTERED ACCOUNT

MEMBERSHIP NO:- 08643
UDIN : 21 0OB643AituMBAGG46



THE MOTWANE MFG.GO.PVT.LTD.
GYAN BAUG, NASHIK ROAD,
NASHIK422101

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

S.M. DAGA
B.Com(Hons), F.C.A.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021

\I

Particulars Note
No.

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2020

A

B

c

D

F

H

H

lncome:
Revenue from Operations

lncome

Total lncome

of Materials Consumed
Change in lnventory of FGAII/IP
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Expenses

Total expenses

lProfit / (Loss) Before Tax

I

lTax expense:
| (1) Current Tax
| 121 Deferred Tax

lProfit / (Loss) for the Year

I

lOther Comprehensive lncome
le; i; ttems that witl not be rectassified to profit or loss
I

ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B) i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive (Loss) / lncome for the year

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Gompany

Earnings Per Equily Share:

16
17

18
t9
20
21

2
22

29,18,70,075
24,51,184

30,68,05,628
43,97,739

29.43.21.259 31,12,03,367

1 3,28,31 ,618
58,98,084

7,64,81,255
1,58,54,485
2,16,14,059
4,06.13,322

14,10,93,856
25,03,024

11,46,22,728
1,51,46,920
2,15,62,660
6.76.82.O70

29,32.92.824 36,26,11,257

10,28,435 (5,14,07,890)

10.28.435 (5.14.07.89C

(9,56,403)

(9,56,403)

12,30,515

12,30,515

72,032 (5,01,77,3751

1) Basic 2.20 (111.40
(2) Diluted 2.20 fi11.40\,
Summary of Significant Accounting policies
Other Notes on Financial Statements
Notes referred to above form an integrat part of the Statement
of Profit & Loss. This is the Statement of profit & Loss referred
to in my report of even date.

1

23 to 35

FOR AND ON BEHALF

n
lt"-

G.P.KHANT
DIRECTOR

PLACE : NASHIK
DATE | 29.06.2021

)Kffi
' 1'4r{4ar-*:;rt&

v-'
JITENDRA AGRAWAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR

YY41&W

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MEMBERSHIP NO,08643
UDIN : 21 008643A4AA8A6646



IFIE MO I WANE, MFG.CO.PVT.LTD.
GYA'.' BAUG, NASHIK ROAD,
NASHTK-422 101

IASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021

Partlculars For The Year Ended
on 31st March 2021

For The Year Ended
on 31st March 2020

lNet Profit(Loss) before tax pard

IAdjustment for :

lDepreciation & Amortisation

lLoss/(Proflt) on Sale of Fixed Assets
lSweat Equity issue expenditure reward
lFinance Cost
llnterest lncome
I
I

lOperating Profit before Working Capital Change
lChange in Working Capital :

llnventories
lTrade Receivables

lNon current and Current Assets
iTrade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions
lCash generated from Operations

lCasn Flow before prior period ad.justment & extraordinary items
I lncome Tax (Paid)/Received

Ittet Castr Flow from Operating Activities
I

I

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Equity shares
Advance against Non Current Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
lnterest Income
Bank Balance not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents matured (Net)
Net Cash from lnvesting Activities

CASH FLOW FROM'FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Pioceeds/(Repayments) from- Cash Credit
Proceeds from lnter Corporate Deposit (Net)
Proceeds from Working Capital Term Loan (Net)
Proceeds from Vehicle Loan
lnterest Expenses
Net Cash provided by / (used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+c)
Cash and Cash Equivalent including Bank Balance at the beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalent including Bank Balance at the end of year

A

B

c

10,28,435

2,1 6,1 4,059
(8, 1 56)

1,39,56,036
(1 7,20,380)

1,80,07,378

(4,35,69,018)

2,32,22,549 
|

(23,39,091 ) I

45,17,303 I

21,75,2061

(5,1 4,07,890)

2,15,62,660
( 1 6,450)

41,74,833
1,20,52,279

(9,25,777\

10,23,941

(5,64,63i,495)

5,09,6s,976

(44,73,578)l
89,90,886 |

I

45,r7,303 |

3.38.41.559 3,68,47,545
3,48,69,994

97,84,727
(78,55,721)
41 ,09,1 13

(2.34 65 940\

(1,45,60,345)

1,02,500
2,06,82, 1 58
(21,14,159)
(26.67.O27\

(1 ,7 4,27 ,821)
(1,74,27,821)

5.65.205

1,60,03,472
1,60"03,472

(4, 19, '1 86)

(2,21 ,36,1 00)
(2,87,64,425)

(1 4, 1 6,637)
1 7,896

7,56,087
79,74,160

(2,94,1s,161)

'19,916

9,25,777
Q.79:94.O27\

(25,2O,291)

3,1 5,00,000
86,49,915
(4,51,039)

(1 39 56 036\

2,50,98,477
1,16,00,000
2,49,16,667

14,03,112
('1.20.52 279\

:oR AlrD 9NEEHA|-F !E BOARD OF DTRECTORS

MEMBERSHIP NO.8643
UDIN : 210086434A,4A8A6646

rq
JITENDRAAGRAWAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR

.,HW
DrREcroR \ z
DATE : 29.06.2021



'ATEMENT OF CHANGES lN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED Mar 3,!, 2021

As at March 31,2019
Rupees

4,58,33,300
8,33,300

4,66,66,600

4,66,66,600

Changes in the Equity Sharb Capital During the Year (Refer note given below)
As at March 31 ,2020
Chahges in the Equity Share Capital During the Year (Refer note given below)
As at Mar 31,2021

B.

Note: During the financial year 2020-2021 company has issued NIL Equity Shares to Director (P.Y. -Eq Sh 8333 of F.V. Rs 100 each) for
other than Cash Consideration

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

r@
JITENDRA AGRAWAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR

MEMBERSHIP NO.8643
UDIN : 21 00B643AAIMBA6646

PLACE: NASHIK
DATE :29.06.202'l

69e

M9 a

on lssue of shares (Refer note given
ProfiU(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive profiU (loss) for the year (net of
tax)
Balance as at March 31,2020

12,30,51 5

Comprehensive profiU (toss) for the year (net of

17,42,74,733 3,16,14,148



Notes to Financial Staternents

Corporate Information

The Company is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the provision of
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Nashik,
Maharashtra, [ndia.
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Electronics & Electricals Products &
Security Products.

Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules ,2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules,2016, the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act,2013 ('the Act").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the following :

- Defined benefit plan (Gratuify) - Net Defined Benefit Asset / Liability measured at fair value on
the basis of Actuarial Valuation.

- I-eave Encashment is accounted on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Financial statements are presented in INR

Significant Accounting Folicies :

a. Fixed Assets :

i. Property, plant and equipment , software & technical know-how etc. are stated at their
original cost of acquisition / installation (net of GST credit wherever applicable) net of
accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are
included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost to the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

ii. Assets not ready for the intended use on the date ofbalance sheet are disclosed as "Capital
work-in-progress". Advances given towards acquisition/construction of fixed assets
outstanding at each Balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advances under
"Other Non-Current Assets ".

' iii. Revenue Expenditure on Research & Developrnent ( R & D ) incurred during the year is
capitalized - as the benefits from the same are expected in future also. The same is.shown as

Intangible Asset as R & D Amortization.
iv. An item ofasset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or

when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
ori derecognition ofthe asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized

v. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.
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b. Depreciation :

Tangible Assets:

I. Depreciation on assets is provided at the WDV Method - at rates and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of majtir Plant &
Machinery and Dies & Moulds. Based on the intemal assessment / condition of the
lnachinery and past experience , company has considered useful life of such plant &' machinery as 20 years instead of 15 years and useful life of Dies & Moulds as 20 years
instead of8 years.

II. Depreciation on additions to assets is provided on a pro-rata basis frorn the date of
acquisition or installation.

III. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped is provided up to the date
on which the said asset is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

ii. Intangible Assets:

I. Expenditure on computer software is amorlized on WDV method considering the useful
life of 10 years.

II. Technical Know-How is amortized over period of 5 years frorn the year of commercial
production.

. IIL Research & Developrnent Expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the camying value of all of
its propefty, plant and equipment and lntangible assets recognized as at I April 2016 measured
as'per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of respective assets.

lmpairment of non-financial assets :

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each Balance sheet date if
there is any indication of impairment based on intemal/external factors. An irnpainnent loss, if
any is recognized in the statement of profit and loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the assets net selling price
and value in use. A previously recognized impairment loss if any, is increased or reversed
depending on the changes in circumstances, however the carrying value after reversal is not
increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual
depreciation/amortization if there was no impairment.

c. lnventories:

Inventory of Raw Material & Components, Trading Goods and Finished Goods is valued at
. cost or net realizable value whichever is less. WIP and Stores & Spares are valued at cost.

d. Provisions and Contingencies :

A provision is recognized for a present obligation as a result ofpast events ifit is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in.respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits & leave encashment) are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate of the amount required
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.
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e. Foreign Currency Conversion :

The Cornpany's financial statements are presented in trndian National Rupee (INR) which is also
its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of' transaction. Foreign ourrency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting cpmpany's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year,

or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in
which they arise.

f. Revenue recognition:

i. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
received.

ii. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. Accordingly, domestic sales are accounted on dispatch of products to

' customers and Export Sales are accounted on the basis of date of Bill of Lading.

GST is collected on behalf of the Government and no economic benefit flo*s to the bntity and

does not result in an increase in equity, consequently revenue is presented net of GST.

Inbome from rendering of services / Commission Income

Revenue from services / Commission Income is recognized exclusive of GST.
Cornmission Income is accounted on the event of substantial supply of underlying goods /
products / receipt of substantial consideration against the same by the Principal.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the

asset.

g. Retirement and other employee benefits:

i. Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by Govemment
Authorities, Employees State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are cbnsidered

as defined contribution plan and the same is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the. year in which the employee renders the related service

ii. Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity, is considered as defined benefit obligation.
The Company has established an irrevocable trust to administer gratuity. The Trust has taken

a poticy under the Group Gratuity Cum Life Insurance Scheme from LIC of India covering
all the eligible employees. The cornpany makes payrnenX of annual premium and contribution
to the Trust as demanded by LIC of India.



Now Under [ND-AS:

The company's liability is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the date of
Balance Sheet. Re-measuretnent, cornprising of Actuarial gain / loss, if any, is imrnediately
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

iii. Leave Encashment is accounted on the basis of actuarial valuation.

h. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition and construction of assets that necessarily takes

substantial period oftirne-to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost

ofsuch assets up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use or sale are capitalized as

part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Taxation :

Provision for Current Tax Liability, if any - is computed on the basis of "Total Income

/ MAT" as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In view of substantial accumulated losses of past years - the company does not anticipate any

tax liability in the near future. Hence as a matter of prudence, the rnanagement has decided not to

recognize deferred tax asset.

As per IND-AS 12, the company has considered MAT credit entitlement as.defered. tax asset

being unused tax credit entitlement.

Research & Development Expenses (R & D ) :

Revenue Expenditure - Revenue expenditure incurred on R & D is capitalized and is

amortized equally over a period of five years. The same is shown in Fixed Assets

Schedule.

Capital Expenditure - Capital expenditure incured on R & D is capitalized and

depreciation on the same is provided for on WDV basis as per useful life mentioned in

Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013.

Impact of COVID -19:

The Company is operating its manufacturing facility as per the guidelines framed by the

Ministry of Home Affairs, The State of Maharashtra as well as Local Administration on

COVID-19. In preparation of these results, the company has considered the possible

effects that may result due to COVID-19 such as recoverability of assets including

inventories and trade receivables. In developing the assumptions relating to future

uncertainties in the economic conditions due to COVID-19, it has used the relevant

internal and external sources of information including economic forecast and expects

that the carrying amount of these assets are recoverable. However, the actual impact of
COVID-19 may differ from that as estimated as at the date of approval of these financial

results. It will continue to closely monitor the developments.

j.

I



E

9'6
.! .q

9,E
=,;:i
6E
EO
EA
9H
Esch
P,
,go
SEo.x
q=

G'E

E;
f.eIE

=3@,q

ciPZa
dE6e
N6
.E
R?
LF
.=9

!<

AE
6E
aO
;
6z

Noq
q

F
o
Fu
U
q
U
oz
J
6
o
F
ou
Foz

o
Fuoo
Eo
zo
Fc
d.oouo



NOTES TO tsALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

Non Current Current

NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS As at March 31,
2021

As at March
31,2020

As at March 31,
2021

As at March
31,2020

Unquoted-At Cost
6000 Shares of Rs.25l- each of Jhulelal Nagari Sahakari
Patsanstha.

Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of lnvestment

43249 shares of FV Rs, 10 each of Telemetrics Equipment
Pvt Ltd (Refer Note - 34)

1,50,000

1,50,000

2.87.64.425

1,50,000

1,50,000

Grand Total 2,87,64,425

Non Current Current

NOTE 4: TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

Trade receivables outstanding for the period exceeding
six months from the date they were due for payment
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

1,08,24,563
11,80,129

1,43,96,890
28,19,034

1,20,04,692 1,72,15,924

Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 11,80,129 28,19,034
1,08,24,563 1,43,96,890

Other Trade Receivable
Unsecured, Considered Good

Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

7,85,55,701 6,71,27,653

7,85,55,70'l 6,71,27.653

Total 8,93,80,264 8,15,24,543

Non Current Current

NOTE 5: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwlse stated)
Earnest Money Deposit
Other Deposits / Receivables
lnterest Accrued on lnvestment/Deposits

29,51,063
17 ,.31,897

39,03,253
20,00,859

13,04,O11 3,39,718

Grand Total 46.82.960 59.04,111 13,04,011 3,39.718

Non Gurrent Gurrent

NOTE 5 (A): OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
As at March 31,

, 2021
As at Marcir

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

(a) Prepaid Expenses
(b) Balance with Government Authorities

(i) lncome Tax Advance
(ii) GST lnput Tax Credit

(c) Others
(i) CapitalAdvance
(ii) Advance to Creditors

Considered Good
(ii) Advance to Staff

Considered Good
(d) Advances aqainst Shares Purchase

8,19,386

10,00,000

4,02,749

Grand Total 18,19,386 4.02.749



NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

Non Current Current

NOTE 6 (B): OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at March 31,
2021

As at March
31,2020

As at March 31,' 2021
As at March

31,2020
(a) Prepaid Expenses
(b) Balance with Government Authorities

(i) lncome Tax Advance
(ii) GST TDS Credit

(c) Others
(i) CapitalAdvance
(ii) Advance to Creditors

Considered Good
(ii) Advance to Staff

Considered Good
(d) Others Receivables

31,O1 ,174

5,04,729
69,693

26,46,552

19,04,428
67,665

1 8, 1 6,52

10,69,93

39,66,4€

47,67,6e
1,26,77

Grand Total 82,94,240 1,17,47

Non Current Current

NOTE 7: DEFERRED TAX ASSET As at Maroh 31,
2021

As at March
31.2020

As at March 31,
2021

As at March
31,2020

Mat Credit Entitlement 1,87,246 1,87,246

1,87,246 1.87.246

NOTE 8: INVENTORIES As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2021

Work-in-Progress

Finished Goods (Manufacturing)
Finished Goods (Trading)

Stores and Spares Part

3,64,04,894

1,82,01,621

98i52,329
3,49;97,159

5,69,690

As at March
31

4,30,86,71

1,59,02,26

1,80,49,76
3,22,45,O1

5,26,65

NOTE 9: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021

CASH. AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

B) OTHERS BANK BALANCES

Money Margin Against Bank Guarantee, Letter of Credit and
Security for Credit Card 16,43,386 32,33,466 2,65,20,481

As at March

Non Current Current
As at March

31.2020

Grancl Total '1u,uu,25,694 10,9E,10,

3,29,04,56



NOTES TO.BALANCE SHEETAS AT 31.03.2021

NOTE 1O - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Face
Value

Per
Share (Rs.)

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

No of
Shares

Value
(Rs.)

No of
Shares

Value
(Rs.)

Eouitv Share Capital

Authorised Capital :

Issued,subscribed and Paid-up :

100

100

5,O0,OOO

4,66,666

5,00,00,000

4,66,66,600

5,00,000

4,66,666

5,00,00,000

4,66,66,600

a) Terms / Right attached to equity shares :

i) The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.100 per share. Each holdei of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share.

ii) ln the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders..

b) Shares held by Holding Company :

Out of the equifu shares issued bv the comqanv, shares held bv its holdinq companv are as below :

As at
31.03.2021

Rs.

As at
31.03.2020

Rs.

Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd.
340130 (31 .3.2021-340130) equity shares of Rs.100
each fully paid

3,40,13,000 3,40,13,000

List of Shareholders havinq holdinq more than 5% a,lono with number of shares held

Name of Shareholder
As at

31.03.2021
'No.of Shares

% Holding
As at

31.03.2020
No.of Shares

% Holding

1) Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd.
2) MT. Pratishwar Harnam Motwane

3) Kaycee(Bermuda) Ltd.

3401 30
27997
30952

72.89o/o

6.007o
6.63%

3401 30
27997
30952

72.89o/o

6.00%
6.63%

Notel During the financial year 2020-2A21 company has issued NIL Equity Shares to Director (P.Y. -Eq Sh 8333 of F.V. Rs 100 each) for
-other than Cash Consideration



NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31,03.2021

Non Current Current.

NOTE 1l: BORROWINGS As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2A20

Secured

Loans Repayable on Demand- from lndusind Bank
Working Capital Term Loan- from lndusind Bank
Buye/s creditors
Vehicle Loan- Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd

Unsecurcd
lnter Corporate Deposit from Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd

1,92,44,373

4,s4,184

1,19,16,;71

9,52,079

8,45,55,177
1,43,22,209

4,97,889

6,22,86,078

8,70,75,468
1,29,99,996

4,5'l,033

3,07,86,078

Grand Total 1,96,98,557 1,28,68,750 16,16,61,353 13,13,12.575

a. Nature of Securitv
i) Loan from lndusind Bank :-
a) Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the company comprising of Stocks of Raw Material,Work in progress,
Finished Goods, Receivables, Book Debts and Other Current Assets.
b) Collaterally secured by movable fixed assets of the Company and land situated at plot no. 01 & 04,
S. No.116/4l, 116N2, 117D, Gyan Baug, Near Utsav. Lawns, Motwane-Road, Deolali, Nashik Road, Nashik- 422101

c) Personal Guarantee of one Director & Corporate Guarantee of Nagpur Power & Industries Ltd excluding for WCTL - Sanction limit of Rs 216 Lacs

i) Loan from Kgtak lUlahindra Prime Ltd :-
Secured against Hypothecation of Vehicle purchased.

b.Rate of lnterest of Loans:-
lndusindBankCashCreditiS.2lo/op.a(Variableinaccorancewith CDrate)(31.03.20:9.75%p.a)
lhduslnd Bank Working Capital Term Loan (Sanction limit Rs 260 Lacs)i 9.50% p.a (31.03.20 : 9.50% p.a)
lnduslnd Bank Working Capital Term Loan (Sanction limit Rs 216 Lacs) i 9.25% p.a (31.03.20 : NA)
ICD from NagpurPower and lndustries Ltd : 10 % p.a.( 31.03.20 : 10% p.a.)
Vehicle Loan:- 9.25% p.a (31.03.20 i 9.25% p.a)

c. ln

Name Facility Sanct, Limit o/s as on
31.03.2021

Repayment

lndusind Bank

lndusind Bank

Kgtak Mahindra Prime Limited

Working Capital Term
Loan

Working Capital Term
Loan

y'eh. Loan

260.00

216.00

14.87

119.17

216.00

9.52

24 lnstallments
w.e.f Mar 2020
36 lnstallment

w.e.f Dec 2021

36 EMI
w.e.f Feb 2020

Non Current Current

NOTE 12: OTHER FII.iANCIAL LIABILITIES As at March 31,2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

Trade/Security Deposit Received from Deaters 5,52,500 5,77,500

Lirano I otat 5,52,500 5,77.500

Non Current Current

NOTE 13: TRADE PAYABLE As at March 31,2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

Irade payable 4,17,68,867 4,79,50,274

Grand Total 4,17,68i867 4,79,50,274

Note: The company has not received any intimation from its suppliers regarding their status under Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2000 and hence the disclosures, if any , relating to
amounts unpaid as at the year-end as required under the said Act have not been furnished.



NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

Non Current Current

NOTE 14: PROVISIONS
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

202',1

As at March
31,2020

A. Provision for employee benefits
Leave Encashment Payable
Bonus & Ex-Gratia Payable
LTA & Medical Payable
Gratuity Payable

B. Other Provisions
. Provision for Expenses

27,99,530

9,88,837

29,14,9_66 1,20,372
27,91,422
18,07,538
6,18,543

24,64,773

2,90,42
30,46,25'
24,45,31,

1,06,34

46,89,49'

Grand Total 37,88,367 29,14,966 78.02.648 1,05,77,93'

Non Current Current

NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT LTABILITIES
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020
As at March 31,

2021
As at March

31,2020

Advance from Customer
Government Dues
Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods
Creditors for Accrued Wages and Salaries
Payable to Staff & Others

22,54,427
50,64,270
4,69,516

89,10,871

5,77,742

33,72,26:
1,51,55,831

5,86,76.
1,18,50,58r

7,12,72"

Grand Total 1,72,76,826 3,16,78,16'



NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

NOTE {6: REVENUE FROM
OPERATIONS

31.03.2021
(RS.)

31.03.2020
(RS.)

Manufacturing Goods Sales

Repairs & lnstallation Charges

Commission Received.

Trading Goods Sales

15,38,00,154

12,79,32,256

62,52,990

38,84,674

16,28,90,434

13,30,14,062

74,95,905

34,05,327

GrandTotal 29,18,70,075 30,68,05,629

NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME
31.03.2021

(RS.)
31.03.2020

(RS.)

lnterest lncome on Fixed Deposits

Exchange Gain

Pr.ofit on Sale of Assets

Sundry Bal. Written Back

Other Receipts

17,20,380

8,1 56

76,880

6,45,768

9,25,

4,35,990

16,450

9,85,138

20,34,483

GrandTotal .24,51,184 43,97,739



NOTE 18: COST OF MATERTALS
CONSUMED

31.03.2021
(Rs.)

3{.03.2020

{Rs.l

Manufacturing
lndigeneous
lmported

Sub Total

Trading Goods
lndigeneous
lmported

' Sub Total

4,88,77,502
51.28.515

5,03,92,499
91 ,80,919

5.40.06.017 5,95,73,4'18

3,06,24,737
4 82 00 86'4

2,33,57,648
5,81,62,790

7,88.25.601 8,15,20,438

Grand Total 13,28.31.618 14,10,93,856

NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.202I

NOTE : 19 CHANGES lN INVENTORY OF F|NISHED GOODS & WORK -IN-PROGRESS

DESCRIPTION 31..03.2021
(Rs.l

31.03.2020
(Rs.)

OPENING STOCK
Finished Goods
WIP
Sub Total

CLOSING STOCK
Finished Goods
WIP
Sub Total

1,80,49,769
1.59.02.265

1,89,97,005
1.74,58.052

3,39,52,034 3,64,ss,058

98,52,329
1.82.01 621

1,80,49,769
1 59 0) 16,5

2-80_53_950 3,39,52,034

(INCREASE) OR DECREASE 58.98.084 2s,03,024

Break up of Raw Material, and
Components consumed

31.03.2021
(Rs.l

31.03.2020
(Rs.l

(Rs.) (Rs.)

rorted

geneous

5,33,29,378

7,95,02,240

40.15

59.85

6,73,43,709

7,37,50,147

47.73

52.27

Grand Total 13.28.3't.618 r00.00 14.10.93.856 '100.00



NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.2021

NOTE 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 31.03.2021
(RS.)

31.03.2020
(RS.)

S?larylwages/Allowances/Leave Encashment etc.

Bonus.

PF/FP/LWF / Admin Charges

ESIC

Staff Welfare Expenses

Gratuity Expenses

Directoi's Remuneration

6,58,1 5,795

1 1,00,949

30,54,935

3,04,455

12,21,384

11,95,321

37,88,4:16

9,50,14,033

10,1 1 ,300

42,07,024

4,79,053

14,42,291

13,99,839

1,10,69,188

Grand Total 7,64,81.255 11.46.22.728

NOTE 2,t: FINANCE COSTS 31.03.2021
rpe i

31.03.2020
,PC I

Bank Charges and Commission

Bank and Other lnterest :-
lnterest on Working Capital Loan
lnterest on Unsecured Loans & Others
lnierest on Vehicle Loan
lnterest on Working Capital Term Loan

'18,98,449

72,97,881
41,76,052

1 ,19,081
23,63,022

30,94,640

8s,69,927
32,36,064

11,132
2,35,157

Grand Total. 1,58,54,485 1,51,46.920



NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.2021

NOTE 22: OTHER EXPENSES 31.03.2021
(RS.)

31.03.2020
(RS.)

) Manufacturing & Other Expenses

n of Stores and Spare Parts
', Water and Fuel

Repairs to Machinery
lnstallation and Repairs Charges

B) Administrative Overheads
Rent
Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Others
lnsuranbe
Rates and Taxes, lncluding, lnt. on S.Tax / TDS/GST
Travelling (Directors)
Foreign Tour (Staff)
lnland Travelling ( Staffl

Expenses

lPostage and Telephone

I 
Miscellaneous Expenses

lExchange Loss

I 
tlcence fees/Tender Fees

[Security Expenses

lMagazines/Subscription / Reg. Fee

I 
Professional Tax (Company)

lMotor Car Expenses

lerinting & Stationery
iLegal & Professional Fees
Sanitory Expenses
VAT/CST/Excise Duty Exp
Donation
Audit Fees

C) Sales Overheads
Testing Fees
Freight, Octroi, Packing Outwar:d
Conference / Seminar / Training Exps.
Commission on Sales
Discount
Marketing , Advertisement and Publicity Exps
Sales Promotion
Liquidated Damages
Sundry Dr.Balance Written -off/Bad Debts
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts & L.D
Recruitment Expenses

14,34,951
14,74,724
8,29,165

11.84.049

15,43,425
19,33,846
17,95,740

253822s
49,22,889 79,11,235

19,92,672
1,10,825

36,12,556,
4,15,603

11,41,377

2,99,595
32,74,116
14,65,084
13,85,659
8,44,095
3,60,235
2,29,509

15,64,232
11,57,214

5,000
5,64,848
3,05,427

25,02,845
2,20,135

70,437.

3,50,000

27,28,041
2,07,431

41,84,869
5,64,705

11,28,787
2,85,553

36,18,829
91,79,365
36,79,714
16,10,012
6,05,391

2,52,909
15,45,924
13,76,500

7,78,128
8,45,380

46,12,018
3,33,303
5,54,061

1,000
3,50,000

2,18,71,463 3,84,41,918

7,15,377
51,77,443
3,13,224

77,939

69,34,056
2,39,419
1,16,9_32

2.44.579

6,13,147
45,00,049

5,98,505
27,77,613

16,949
66,30,477
7,26,414

15,10,251
2,05,523

28,19,034
10,30,955

1,39,19,969 2,14,29,916

Grand Total 4,06,13,322 6,76,82,070



NOTE 23: CONTINGENT l-lABlLlTlES NOT PROVIDED FOR

usually not provided for unless it is probable

NOTE 25 : CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
(As certified by the Management)

NOTE 26 : EXPENDITURE/PAYMENT IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)
(As certified by the Management)

NOTE 27: FOB VALUE OF EXPORT
(As certifled by the Management)

may

PARTICULARS 31.03.2421
(RS.)

3',1.03.2020
(RS.)

a.'Bank Guarantees issued to Customers
b. Letter of Credit issued

3,15,46,201
64,05,412

3,73,00,382
28,58,625

liabilities are usually not provided for unless it is probable that the future outcome mav be
materially detrimental to the company.

NOTE 24: AUDITORS REMUNERATION

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Statutory Audit
TaxAudit

2,50,000
1,00,000

2,s0,000
1,00,000

Total 3.50.000 3,50,000

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
1. CapitalGoods
2. Raw Materials and Componentsffradinq Goods 5,60,15,288 6,11,54,126
Total 5,60,15,288 6,11,54,126

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Overseas Travelling
Foreign Employee Salary
Recruitment Exp- Foreign Employees
Testing Fees
Exhibition
Repair Charges
Rent
Magazine/SubscriptioniOffice Registration Charges
Rates & Taxes

'2,58,120

29,55,095

7,18,626
49,115
55,712
62,969

17,05,126
37,70,594

5,69,071

8,03,136
25,38,225
2,13,449
2,28,568
1,47 ,545

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Export on FOB Value 2,11,30,896 2,53,43,308

Total 2,11,30,896 2,53,43,308



NOTE 28 : EARNING PER SHARE

NOTE 29: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

# lncludes Equity Shares issued Rs Nil (P.Y Rs 41,74,833i- ) issued other than in cash consideration

NOTE 30 : BALANCE WITH CO.OP. SOCIETY

NOTE 31 : RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Following expenditure is incurred on Res-earch & Developrnent

PARTIGULARS
For the year
ended 31st
March2021

For the year
ended 3{st March

2020
Profit / (Loss) for the year (Rs.)
Weighted Average No. of Shares outstanding

Earning per share - (Face Value of Share is Rs '100)

Basic
Diluted

10,28,435
4,66,666

2.20
2.20

(5,14,07,890)
4,61,475

(111.40)
(1 11.40)

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

la.Sarary & Allowances #

| (lncluding PF Contribution, Exgratia, Medical Benefits etc.)

b.Qffice Rent paid to Director/Shareholders

d.lnterest p'aiO to Holding Company (Nagpur Power And
lndustries Ltd.) on ICD

e, Borrowings obtained from Holding Company (Nagpur Power and
lndustries Limited) on ICD during the year

e. Repayment of Borrowings to Holding Company (Nagpur Power and
lndustries Limited) on ICD during the year

37,88,416

96,000

41,08,061

5,00,00,000

1,85,00,000

1 ,'1 0,69,188

96,012

26,73,729

1,16,00,000

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

(RS.l
31.03.2020

(RS.}

Bank balance includes balance with Jhulelal Nagari Patsanstha 24,968 24,968

PARTICULARS FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Revenue Expenditure

Capital Expenditure

1,66,77,511

2,71,300

2,16,23,351

Total 1,69,48,811 2,16,23,351



INVENTORY AND TRADED GOODS :

(Taken as certified by Management.)

32.1 Turnover of Sales :

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-2A

Manufacturing Sales
1. Electronics & Electrical Products
3. Lighting
4. Security

15,38,00,'t54
12,00,78,701

11,27,810
3,25,93,643

16,28,90,434
13,99,17,038

27,32,674
2,02,40,722

SIJB TOTAL: 15.38.00.,154 16.28.90.434

Trading Goods Sales :

1. Electronics & Electrical Products
2. Security
3. Veqetable

12,79,32,256
10,94,19,538

1,62,44,843
22,67,875

13,30,14,062
12,99,78,450

30,35,612

TOTAL NET SALES 28.17.32.410 29,59,04,496
Add: Service lncome
Add: Commission Received

62,52,990
38,84,674

74,95,805
3;4,O5,327

TOTAL SALES + REPAIRS CHARGES + COMMISSION 29.18.70.075 30,68,05,529

32.2 Trading Activities :

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Opening Stock
Purchases
Sales
Closinq Stock

3,22,45,019
8,15,77,741

12,79,32,256
3,49,97,159

3,'13,68,877
8,23,96,580

13,30,14,062
3,22,45,O19

I



Note 33 Employee Benefits:

Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)

The company operates a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit based on last drawn salary for
each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is earlier.
The benefit vests after five years of continuous service. the same is funded with Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia

Note 34 Acquisition of Shares of Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited:
Company has entered into share purchase agreement on 1oth March,2021 with the promotors of Telemetrics
Equipments Private Limited to acquire 100% Stake by way of purchase of shares of all the shareholders of the

said company for Rs 575 Lacs,

Accordingly, company has during the year purchased 50% stake in the said company.

2021 2020

l) Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of obligations
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,31,95,104 1,27,01,311

Current service cost 12,07,944 13,03.50i
Past service cost
lnterest cost 7,76 9,46,202
Benefits paid (J4, /1 ,1 4trJ (5,03,4441

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 8,68,127 (12,52,572"

Liability at the end of the year 1,25,76,87! 1,31,95,104

ll) Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets
'air value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,30,88,764 1.26,64,960
xpected return on plan assets 7.89.469 8,49,970

Contributions by the employer 6,50,683 99,335
Benefits paid (34,71,146) (5,03,444)

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets (88,276) (22,057)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.09,69.494 1,30,88,764

lll) Net actuarial (gain) / loss
Actuarial (gain) / loss on Obligations 8,68,127 {.12,52,572)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets (88,276) (22,O57)

Net actuarial (qain) / loss 9,56,403 (12,30,515)

lV) Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 1,25,76,875 1,31,95,104

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,09,69, 1,30,88,76{

Net Liability / (Asset) 16,07,381 1,06,

V) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and loss
Current service cost 12,07,944 13,03,60i
lnterest cost 7,76, 9,46,
Expected return on plan assets (7,89,469 (8,49,97(

Total expenses included in "Employee benefit expense" under Note 20 11,95,321 13,99

Vl) Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets 7,89.46! 8,49,970
Actuarial qain on Dlan assets (88,276 (22,057

Actual return on plan assets 7,01,'t 93 8,27,913

Vll) Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 6.760/0 6.82Yc

Salary escalation rate 4.50Yo 4.50Yc

Vlll) Other disclosures - Gratuity 2,021 2,020

Liability at the end of the year 't,25,76,875 1,31,95,104

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year. 1,09,69,494 1,30,88,764

Amount recoqnised in Balance Sheet 16,07,381 1,06,340

Experience adjustments on liability 9,24,871 124,829)
Experience adiustments on plan assets 49,265 1,41,',t04



. NOTE 35 : OTHER NOTES

35.1 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever found necessary.

35.2 lt is informed that lncome Tax Assessments have been completed up to Ay 2018-19

35;3 ln view of substantial unabsorbed depreciation and losses under the lncome Tax
Act - as matter of prudence, deferred tax asset is not recognized in the books.

35.4 ln the opinion ofthe management - stock, Receivable, Loans & Advances have a

value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the sums
stated.

35.5 Balances of Loans, Advances and Deposits / Receivables are subject to confirmation.



S.M.DAGA

B.Com. (Hons.); F.C.A.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

201, Dhananiay Heights,
Adwait Colony, Canada Corner,
Nashik 422005.
Tel. :0253 -257 4034

INDEPENDENT AUDtTOR,S REPORT

To The Members of The Motwane Manufacturing Company Pvt. Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financialstatements of The Motwane Manufacturing

Company Pvt. Ltd. ("MMCPL")and Telemetrics Equipments Pvt. Ltd. ( "TEPL"), which comprise the

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "consolidated

financial statements"). ln my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the

explanations given to me, and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on financial

statements of TEPL - the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required

by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with

the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('lnd AS') and other

accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs as at 31 March

2021, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their

consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). My responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of

Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to my audit of the consolidated financial statements under the

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and I have fulfilled my other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. I believe that

the audit evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit

opinion on the consolidated financial statements.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professionaljudgment, were of most significance in

my audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. I have determined that there

are no key audit matters to be communicated in my report.

tnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Board of Directors of MMCPL is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in Board's Report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements, standalone financial statements and my auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and I do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with my audit of the consolidated financialstatements, my responsibility is to read the

other information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the consolidated financial statements or my knowledge obtained during the course of my audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

lf, based on the work I have performed I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of MMCPL is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair

view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other

comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Company

in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. The

respective Board of Directors of both the company are responsible for maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financialstatementsthatgive a true and fairview and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of MMCPL, as

afo resa id.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of both the

companies are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective company to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis

of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective

entities orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the company are also responsible for overseeing the financial

reporting process of the company.



Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to
issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
il individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, lam also

responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the M MCPL has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of both the company's to continue as a going

concern. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of both the

Company's and to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of MMCPL. For

TEPL - the accounts of which have been audited by other auditor - such other auditor remains

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
that company. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. I consider

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of my audit work and in
evaluating the results of my work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

I communicate with those charged with governance of MMCPL included in the consolidated financial

statements of which I am the independent auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period

and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I

determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of TEPL - the accounts of which are considered in the
consolidation after the acquisition of shares in TEPL by MMCPL. The financial statements of TEPL

have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to me by the Management and

my opinion on the consolidated financial statements , in so far as it relates to the amounts and

disclosures included in respect of TEPL and my report in terms of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the

Act, in so far as it relates to TEPL is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

My opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and my report on other legal and other
regulatory requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to my

reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, based on my audit and on the consideration of the report of

the other auditor on the separate financial statements of TEPL referred to in the Other Matters Section

above - I report to the extent applicable that:

a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financialstatements.



b) ln my opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from my examination of those

books and the report of the other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive lncome, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) ln my opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified

under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of MMCPL as on 31st March,

2021taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the report of the statutory auditor
of TEPL, none of the directors of both the com pany's is disqualified as on 3Lst March, 202 L from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate Report in "Annexure A" which is based

on the auditors'reports of MMCPL and TEPL. My report expresses an unmodified opinion on the

adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the both

the company's.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in my opinion and to the best of my

information and according to the explanations given to me, the remuneration paid by MMCPL & TEPL

to its director during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201.4, as amended in my opinion and to the best of
my information and according to the explanations given to me:

i. According to information and explanations given to be there are no any material pending

litigations in respect of both the companies - and therefore the question of disclosing the same

does not arise.

ii. Both the company's did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts.

iii.Investor Education and Protection Fund is not applicable to both the company's.

Chartered
Proprietor
Membership No. 08543

PIace: Nashik
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Annexure ttA" to the lndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under'Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements' section

of my report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of The Motwane

Manufacturing Company Private Limited as at and for the year ended 31st March 2O2Ll

Report on the lnternal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

ln conjunction with my audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for

the year ended 31st March 2O2L,l have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting

of The Motwane Manufacturing Company Private Limited and Telemetrics Equipments Private

Limited, which are companies incorporated in lndia, as of that date.

Management's ResponsibiliW for lnternal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for establishing and maintaining

internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by

the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute

of Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that are operating effectively for ensuring

the orderly and efficient conduct of their business, including adherence to the respective company's

policies, the safeguarding of their assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of

the both companies, based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section

143(i.O) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My audit of

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor

in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for my audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial

reporting of the both companies.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ln my opinion to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and based

on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor referred to in the Other Matters paragraph

below, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

31st March 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting

established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.



Other Matters

My aforesaid report under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness

of the interna I fina ncia I controls over fina ncia I reporting insofa r as it relates to Telemetrics Eq uipments

private Limited , is based solely on the report of the auditor of that company. My opinion is not

modified in respect of the above matters.

Accountant
Proprietor
Membership No. 08643

Place: Nashik
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate Information

The Company is a Private Limited Company dorniciled in India, irrcorporated under the provision of
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Nashik,
Maharashtra, lndia.
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Electronics & Electricals Products &
Security Products.

Under Cornpanies Act,2013 Group is defined as parent, subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates.

The consolidation pertains to The Motwane Manufacturing Co Pvt Ltd (hereafter MMCPL) and

Telemetrics Equiprnent Pvt Ltd (hereafter TEPL ) , wherein MMCPL holds 50% shares in TEPL

Basis of Preparation:

These Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) RLrles ,2015 as

amended by the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) (Amendrnent) Rules,2016, the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act").

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the following:
- Defined benefit plan (Gratuity) - Net Defined Benefit Asset / Liability rneasured at fair value on

the basis of ActuarialValuation.
- Leave Encashment is accounted on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Financial statements are presented in INR

Significant Accounting Policies :

a. Fixed Assets:

Propefty, plant and equipment, software & teclinical know-how etc. are stated at their original
cost of acquisition / installation (net of GST credit wherever applicable) net of accumulated
depreciation, amoftization and impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are included in
the asset's carrying arnount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the itern will flow to the company and the cost to the itern can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
Assets not ready for the intended Lrse on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as "Capital
work-in-progress". Advances given towards acquisition/construction of fixed assets

outstanding at each Balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advances under
"Other Non-Current Assets ".
Revenue Expenditure on Research & Developrnent (R & D) incurred dLrring the year is
capitalized - as the benefits frorn the same are expected in future also. The same is shown as

Intangible Asset as R & D Amortization.
An item of asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.
The residr,ral values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propefty, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

ll.

lll.

iv.



b. Depreciation:

Tangible Assets:

I. Depreciation on assets is provided at the WDV Method - at rates and in the lnanner
prescribed in SchedLrle II to the Companies Act,2013 except in the case of rnajor Plant &
Machinery and Dies & Moulds of MMCPL. Based on the internal assessment / condition
of the machinery and past experience, MMCPL has considered useful Iife of such plant &
machinery as 20 years instead of l5 years and useful life of Dies & Moulds as 20 years

instead of 8 years.

I L'I'l tlipr:,i.r.i.,rr ir;thiril lla:; bccrr clriiir-{ctl liorl Sl.\1 L,) \l'DV iit or,-lci i.o l.ic ci;,r-i,,1.;r'rl,

rr ith \l \j( {)1.. I hc inr1-.ucf hlr,; hcr:n cllcLriulicl rci.ro:;pcctir.clr itn.l clchit,:ri ir llc',cl'r,c:;,

Depreciation orr additions to assets is provided on a pro-rata basis frorn the date of
acquisition or installation.
Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped is provided up to the date

on which the said asset is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

ii. Intangible Assets:

I. Expenditllre ou computer software is amortized on WDV method considering the useful
life of 10 years.

I[. Technical Know-How is amortized over period of 5 years from the year of commercial
prodLrction.

III. Research & Development Expenses are amoftized over a period of 5 years.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, TEPL as well as MMCPL has elected to continue with the carrying
value of allof its property, plant and equipment and lntangible assets recognized as on date of
transition measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of respective assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets:
The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each Balance sheet date if
there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss, if
any is recognized in the statement of profit and loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable arnount is greater of the assets net selling price
and value in use. A previously recognized impairment loss if any, is increased or reversed

depending on the changes in circumstances, however the carrying value after reversal is not
increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual
depreciation lamortization if there was no irnpairment.

lnventories:

Inventory of Raw Material & Components, Trading Goods and Finished Goods is valued at
cost or net realizable value whichever is less. WIP and Stores & Spares are valued at cost.

d. Provisions and Contingencies:

A provision is recogrrized for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable

II.

III.

IV.



7

estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits & leave encashment) are not
discounted to its present value and are detennined based on best estirnate of the amount required
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

e. Use of estimates and Judgements

In preparing the financial statements, the management has to make certain assurnptions and
estimates that may substantially irnpact the presentation of the groups's financial position and /or
results of operation

The estimates and jLrdgments used in the preparation of financial statements are continually
evaluated by the companies and are based on historical experiences and various other factors and
assumptions. Although the GroLrp regLrlarly assesses these estimates, actual results may differ
from these estimates. Change in estimates is recorded in the period in which they become know.

f. Foreign Currency Conversion :

The Groups's Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (lNR)
which is also its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year,
or repofted in previotts financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in
which they arise.

g. Revenue recognition:

i. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the ecorromic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenlre can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
received.

ii. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognized wlien the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. Accordingly, domestic sales are accounted on dispatch of products to
customers and Export Sales are accounted on the basis of date of Bill of Lading.

GST is collected on behalf of the Government and no economic benefit flows to the entity and
does not result in an increase in equity, consequently revenue is presented net of GST.

Income from rendering of services / Commission Income

Revenue from services / Commission Income is recognized exclusive of GST.
Commission Income is accounted on the event of substantial supply of underlying goods /
products / receipt ol substantial consideration against the same by the Principal.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a tirne proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.



h. Retirement and other employee benefits:

i. Ernployee benefits in the form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government
Authorities, Ernployees State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered
as defined contribution plan and the same is charged to the Statement of Prof-it and Loss for
the year in which tlie employee renders the related service

ii. Retirernent benefit in the form of Gratuity, is considered as defined benefit obligation.
MMCPL has established an irrevocable trust to adrninister gratuity. The Trust has taken a
policy under the GroLrp Gratuity Curn Life Insurance Scheme from LIC of India covering all
the eligible employees. The company makes payment of annual premium and contribr"rtion to
the Trust as demanded by LIC of India.

TEPL has obtained a Group Gratuity Policy from the Life lrrsurance Corporation of India in
respect of the gratLrity liability and the annual contribution paid by the company to LIC is

charged to Profit and Loss Statement

Now Under IND-AS:

The Group's tiability is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the date of
Balance Sheet. Re-measurement, comprising of Actuarial gain / loss, if any, is imrnediately
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

iii. Leave Encashment is accounted on the basis of actuarial valuation.

i. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition and construction of assets that necessarily takes
substantial period of time-to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for intended Lrse or sale are capitalized as

part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in wl,icli they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

j. Taxation :

Provision for Current Tax Liability, if any - is computed on the basis of "Total Incorne
/ MAT" as per the provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1 961 .

In view of substantial accumulated losses of past years - MMCPL does not anticipate any
tax liability in the near future. Hence as a matter of prudence, the management has decided not to
recognize deferred tax asset.

However in respect of TEPL , deferred tax Assets and deferred tax liabilities have been

recognized for all timing differences in accordance with the Ind AS 12

As per IND-AS 12, the group has considered MAT credit entitlement as deferred tax asset

being unused tax credit entitlement.



j. Research & Development Expenses (R & D ) :

Revenue Expenditure - Revenue expenditure incurred on R & D is capitalized and is
amorlized equally over a period of five years. The same is shown in Fixed Assets
Schedule.

Capital Expenditure - Capital expenditure incurred on R & D is capitalized and
depreciation on the same is provided for on WDV basis as per useful life mentioned in
Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013.

Impact of COVID -19:

MMCPL and TEPL are operating its manufacturing facility as per the guidelines framed
by the Ministry of Home Affairs, The State of Maharashtra as well as Local
Administration on COVID-19. In preparation of these results, the group has considered
the possible effects that may result due to COVID-19 such as recoverability of assets

including inventories and trade receivables. In developing the assumptions relating to
future uncerlainties in the economic conditions due to COVID-19, it has used the relevant
internal and external sources of information including economic forecast and expects that
the carrying amount of these assets are recoverable. I-lowever, the actual impact of
COVID-19 may differ from that as estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
results. It will continue to closely monitor the developments.

9



rHE MOTWANE MFG.CO.PVT.LTD.
GYAN BAUG, NASHIK ROAD,
\ASHtK-422 101

5.M. UAUA
B.Com{Hons), F.C.A.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31,2021

Parti cu lars Note No. As at March 31, 2021

\SSET5

{ON -CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
lntangible assets and Goodwill
Flnancial Assets

lnvestment
Trade Receivables
Loan
Others Financial Assets
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax assets (Net)
Other Non-current assets

2A
28
2C

3

4

5

I
7

6A

2,59.47.72A
22,88,859

5,34,52,710

51,64,;e5
1 6.43,386
5.50,072

21.40,587

Total Non-Current Assets 9,1 1,88,337

SURRENT ASSETS
lnventories
Financial AssEts

lnvestment
Trade Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Loan
Others Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

I

4
I
9

5
6B

1 1,93.60,51 1

10.36.73J23
22,08,836

3,06,39,61 B

1 4.01 ,305
1,42.00,641

Total Current Assets 27,14,84,033
IOIALASSEIS 36,26,72,370

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EOUITY

Equity Share Capital
Share Application Money
Other Equity

10 4,66,66,600

5,03,53,528

Iotal Equity I,1o,29,128

LIABILITIES:
f,lon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilites

Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions
Other non-current liabiliiies

11

12

14

1,96,98,557

5,52,500
43,23,544

Total Non Current Laibilities 2,45,74,601

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payables
Olher Financial Liabilities

Other current liabilities
Provislon

't1

13

11

't5

14

1 6,59,83,324
4,36,13,345

1.94, S9,54'1

1,19,81 ,432
Total Current Laibilities 24,10.77,641

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILI I IES 36.26.72.37

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Other Notes on Financial Statements
Notos referred to above form an integral part of the
Balance Sheet. This is the Balance Sheet referred to in
mv report of even date.

1
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THE MOTWANE MFG.CO.PVT.LTD. S.M. OAGA

GYAN BAUG, NASHIK ROAD, B.Com(Hons), F.C.A.

NASHIK422 101 CHARTEREO ACCOUNTANT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED IIIARCH 31 ,202'I

Particulars
Note
No.

As at March 31, 202'l

B

c

D

E

F

G

lncome:
Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

Total lncome

Expenses:
Cost of l\,4aterials Consumed
Change in lnventory of FG/WlP
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses

Total expenses

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax

Tax expense:
('l) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax
(3) Excess Provision for lncome Tax / l\lAT Earlier Year

Profit / (Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive lncome
A) i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B) i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive (Loss) / lncome for the year

Profit for the year

16

17

1B

19

20

21

2

22

29.95,74,O10
24,67,135

JO,2U,41,145

1 3,58,41,506
54.77.933

7,76,88,002
1,58.83,31 '1

2,16,34,481
4,08.85,456

29,74,10,691

46,30,453

10,13,379
(84,3s2)

37,01,426

(s,55,86s)

(9,s5,865)

27,45,561

Profit / (Loss) for the Year attributable to :

Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling lnterest

Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling lnterest

Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling lnterest

Earninqs Per Equity share:

23,64,930
1 3,36,496

(e,56, 134)
269

14,08,796
13,36,764

1 ) Basic 5.07

) Diluted 5.07

iummary of Significant Accounting Policies
)ther Notes on Financial Statements
\,lotes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement
)f Profit & Loss. This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred
o in my report of even date.

1

23 to 35

G.P.KHANDELWAL/ JITENDRAAGRAWAL * -
DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR

t^^./ 
o'; 
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PLACE : NASHIK
DATE : 29.07.2021

MEMBERSHIP NO:- 08643
UDIN : 21008643AAAABD40'13
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GYAN BAUG, NASHIK ROAD,
NASHIK-422 101

B.Com(Hons), F.C.A"

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

For The Year Ended
on 31st March 2021

46,30,453

2,16,34,481

1,39,75,393

1,70,85,936

2,51,74,123

45,12,608

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit(Loss) before tax paid

Adjustment for :

Depreciation & Amortisation
on Sale of Fixed Assets

Profit before Working Capital Change
in Working Gapital :

Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions
generated from Operations
Flclw before prior period adjustment & extraordinary items

Prior Period adjustments
lncome Tax (Paid)/Received
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Payment for Acquiring shares of Telemetrlcs Equipmemt Private Limited

Advance against Non Current Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Balance not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents matured (Net)

yments against Cash Credit (Net)
from lnter Corporate Deposit (Net)

from Working Capital Term Loan (Net)

Cash provided by / (used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalent including Bank Balance at the beginning of year

Bank Balance at the end of

87,73j39
(2,50,57,533
(2,09,68,2s8

(4,48,17 4

(2,36,83,601
(2,87,64,425

17,896
7,65,531

84,57,410

(s,49,360)
3,15,00,000

86,49,915
(4,51,039)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

-E.rrli. 
o(cnl

ctra(renEpdccouNrANr
MEMBERSHIP NO:- 08643
UDIN : 21008643AAAA8D4013

DIRECTOR

t*k



OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH

As al l\.4arch 31. 2020

Changes in the Equity Share Capital During the Year (Refer note given below)

As at lvar 31, 2021

Particulars

Balance as at March 31,2020
Share in Reserves as on date of Acquisition
ProfiV(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensrve profit/ (loss) for the year (nel of
tax)

Note: During the financial yeat 2O2O-2O21 company has issued NIL Equity Shares to Director (P.Y.

other than Cash Consideration

-Eq Sh 8333 of F.V. Rs 100 each) for

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MEMBERSHIP NO:- 08643

UDIN : 21 008643A,4,A480401 3
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6000 Shares of Rs.25l- each of Jhulelal Nagari Sahakari
Patsanstha.
Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of lnvestment

1,50,000
1,s0,000

NOTE 4: TRADE RECEIVABLES

receivables outstanding for the period exceeding six
from the date they were due for payment

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

1,14,95,427
'l 1,80,129

Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 11,80,129

9.21.77,696Unsecured, Considered Good

Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

10,36,73,123

5: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Earnest Money Deposit
Other Deposits / Receivables
lnterest Accrued on lnvestment/Deposits

6 (A): OTHER NON CURRENTASSETS

(b) Balance with Government Authorities
(i) lncome Tax Advance
(ii)Central Excise / Service Tax Advance
(ii) GST lnput Tax Credit
(iii) Sales Tax Refund (State)

(c) Others
(i) Capital Advance
(ii) Advance to Creditors

Considered Good
(ii) Advance to Staff

Considered Good
(d) Advance against Share Purchase of Telemetrics

25,664

11,14,923

10,00,000



NoTE 6 (B): OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

32,78,996

58,79,1 60
5,207

3,24,048

27,40,875

19,04,691

(b) Balance with Government Authorities
(i) lncome Tax Advance
(ii)Central Excise / Service Tax Advance
(ii) GST TDS Credit

(c) Others
(i) Capital Advance
(ii) Advance to Creditors

Considered Good
(ii) Advance to Staff

Considered Good

As at March 31,

2021
As at March 31,

20217: DEFERRED TAX ASSET

MAT Credit Entitlement /Deferred Tax Asset

As at March 31,

2021
As at March 31,

2021

Raw Materials & Components

Finished Goods (Manufacturing)
Finished Goods (Trading)

Stores and Spares Part

4,25,67,260

2,00,s4,247

2,11,32,154
3,49,97,155

5,69,690

As at March 31,

2021NOTE 9: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As at March 31,

2021

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Margin Against Bank Guarantee, Letter of Credit and
3,06,39,618



SHEET AS AT 31.

NOTE 1O . EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Face
Value

Per
Share (Rs.)

As at llilarch 31,2021

No of Value
Shares (Rs.)

Equitv Share Capital

Authorised Capital :

lssued,Subscribed and Paid-up :

'100

100

500000 5,00,00,000

466666 4,66,66,600

a) Terms / Right attached to equity shares :

i) The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is

entitled to one vote Per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will tle entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

b) Shares held by Holding Company :

Out of the equitv shares issued bv the companv. shares held bv its holdinq companv are as below :

As at
31.03.202',1

Rs.

Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd.

3401 30 (31 .3.2020-3401 30) equity shares of Rs.1 00

each fully paid

3,40,1 3,000

List of Shareholders having holdinq more than 5% alonq with number of shares held

Name of Shareholder

As at
31.03.2021 % Holding

No.of Shares

1 ) Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd.

2) Mr. Pratishwar Harnam [,4otwane

3) Kaycee(Bermuda) Ltd.

340130 72.45%
27597 6.00%

309s2 6.63%

Note: During the flnancial yea( 2020-2021 company has issued NIL Equity Shares to Director (P.Y. -Eq Sh 8333 of F.V. Rs 100 each) for

other than Cash Consideration



SHEET AS AT 31.03.202,I

Hypothecation ofthe entire current assets ofthe company comprising of Stocks of Raw Material,Work in progress,

Finished Goods, Receivables, Book Debts and Other Current Assets.

Collaterally secured by movable fixed assets of the Company and land situated at plot no. 01 & 04,

S. No.1 1 6/A1 , 116A12, 117lD, Gyan Baug, Near Utsav. Lawns, Motwane-Road, Deolali, Nashik Road, Nashik- 4221 01

Personal Guarantee of one Director & Corporate Guarantee of Nagpur Power & lndustries Ltd excluding for WCTL - Sanction limit of Rs 216 Lacs

tl LQan trotlt nu(aK tvtdnItutd rrrltc LLU .-

Secured against hypothecation of Vehicle purchased.

Primary :-Exclusive Charge by way of hyopthecation of entire current assets of the Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited including
stock and debtors ( present and future)

Collateral :-
i) Exclusive Charge by way of hyopthecation of all plant and machinery & other fixed asssets entire current assets

of Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited including stock and debtors ( present and future)

ii) Exclusive Charge by way of mortgage of Unit No 7 & Unit No 8 situated at Electronic Sadan No ll MIDC Bhosari Pune

Personal Guaranlee of one Director

ll-Il!9l9!l!l-!S4llL:
BankCashCredit.-8.21o p.a(Variableinaccorancewith CDrate)(31.03.20:9.75o/op.a)
Bank Working Capital Term Loan (Sanction limit Rs 260 Lacs):- 9.50% p.a (31 .03.20 : 9.50% p.a)

BankWorkingCapital TermLoan(SanctionlimitRs2l6Lacs):- 9.25%p.a(31.03.20:NA)
from Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd : 10 % p.a. ( 31.03.20 .1Oo p.a.)

loan.- 9.25vo p.a (31.03.20 .9.25o p.a)

lDBl Bank - 10.35% p.a (31 .03.20 . 11.25o/o p.a)

Secured

Loans Repayable on Demand - lndusind Bank
Loans Repayable on Demand - lDBl Bank
Working Capital Term Loan- from lndusind Bank

Vehicle Loan- Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd

U nsecu red
lnter Corporate Deposit from Nagpur Power and lndustries Ltd

1,92,44,373
4,54,184

B,45,55,177
43,21 ,971

1,43,22,209
4,97,889

6,22,86.O78

260.00

216.00

14.87

lndusind Bank

lndusind Bank

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

119.17

216.00

9.52

24 lnstallments
w.e.f lvlar 2020

36 Installment
.e.f Dec 2021

.e.f Feb 2020

NOTE 12: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade/Security Deposit Received from Dealers

NOTE 13: TRADE PAYABLE



NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

A. Provision for employee benefits
Leave Encashment Payable
Bonus & Ex-Gratia Payable
LTA & Medical Payable
Gratuity Payable

B. Other Provisions

Provision for Expenses
Provision for lncome Tax

34,76,8_37

8,46,707

1,36,760
31 ,87,210
18,07,538
6,35,060

29,61,206
32,53,658

1,19,81,432

NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customer
Government Dues
Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods
Creditors for Accrued Wages and Salaries
Payable to Staff & Others

32,92,056
60,24,361
4,69,516

91,35,865
5,77,742



NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3'1.03.2021

31.03.2021
(RS.)NOTE 16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Manufacturing Goods Sales

Trading Goods Sales

Repairs & lnstallation Charges

Commission Received

16,15,04,089

12,79,32,256

62,52,990

38,84,674

29,95,74,010

NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME

17,29,824

8,1 56

83,387

6,45,768

lnterest lncome on Fixed Deposits

Profit on Sale of Assets

Sundry Bal. Written Back

Other Receipts



NIOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.2021

NOTE 18: COST OF MATERIALS
CONSUMED

5,07,07,709
Manufacturing

lndigeneous
lmported

Sub Total

Trading Goods
lndigeneous
lmported

Sub Total

3,06,24,737

13,58,41,506

Break up of Raw Material, and
Components consumed

40.13

59.87

5,45,09,060.18

8.13,32,446.10

Imported

Indigeneous

13,58,41,506

NOTE : 19 CHANGES lN INVENTORY OF

FINISHED GOODS & WORK.IN.
PROGRESS

2,81,95,786.17
1,85,08,547.83

OPENING STOCK
Finished Goods
WIP
Sub Tota!

CLOSING STOCK
Finished Goods
WIP
Sub Total

2,11,32,154

31.03.2021



NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.2021

31.03.2021
NOTE 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

6,64,26,821

11,39,801

30,89,377

3,08,830

12,38,667

12,03,235

42,81,271

Salary/Wages/Allowances/Leave Encashment etc.

Bonus

PF/FP/LWF / Admin Charges

ESIC

Staff Welfare Expenses

Gratuity Expenses

Director's Remuneration

Grand Total 7,76,88,002

NOTE 21: FINANCE COSTS

Bank Charges and Commission

Bank and Other lnterest :-
lnterest on Working Capital Loan
lnterest on Unsecured Loans & Others
lnterest on Vehicle Loan
lnterest on Working Capital Term Loan

'19,07,918

73,17,238
41,76,052

1 ,19,081
23,63,022

1,58,83,31 1



NOTES TO PROFIT & ENDED 31.03.2021

22: OTHER EXPENSES

) Manufacturing & Other Expenses

onsumption of Stores and Spare Parts

Power, Water and Fuel
Repairs to Machinery
lnstallation and Repairs Charges

B) Admin istrative Overheads
Rent
Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Others
lnsurance
Rates and Taxes, lncluding, lnt. on S.Tax / TDS/GST
Foreign Tour
lnland Travelling
Conveyance Expenses
Postage and Telephone
Miscellaneous Expenses
Exchange Loss
Lrcence fees/Tender Fees
Security Expenses
Magazines/Subscription / Reg. Fee
Professional Tax (Company)
Motor Car Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Legal & Professional Fees
Sanitory Expenses
VAT/CST/Excise Duty Exp
Audit Fees

C) Sales Overheads
Testing Fees
Freight, Octroi, Packing Outward
Conference / Seminar / Training Exps.
Commission on Sales
Marketing , Advertisement and Publicity Exps
Sales Promotion
Liquidated Damages
Recruitment Expenses
Discount to Customers

14,34,951
14,92,880
8,29,165

20,09,079
1 ,10,825

36,19,847
4,19,901

12,03,051
2,99,595

33,1 2,099
14,71,301
13,93,413
8,44,095
3,49,263
2,31,728

15,7 1 ,103
11 ,60,538

5,521
5,64,848
3,1 0,488

25,44,081
2,20,135

70,437
3,54,685

7,35,332
52,00,239

3,13,224
85,086

69,39,235
2,39,415
1,21 ,262
2,44,579



IOTE 23 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIOEO FOR

,ARTICULARS 31.03.2021
tRs I

r. Bank Guarantees issued to Customers
). Letter of Credit issued

3,26,85,338
64,05.412

lontingent liabilities are usually not provided for unless it is probable that the future outcome may be

naterially detrimental to the company.

IOTE 24: AUDITORS REMUNERATION

]ARTICULARS 31.03.2021
(RS.)

Statutory Audit
Iax Audit

2.52,603
1.02,082

Iotal 3,54,685

NOTE 25 : CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
(As certified by the [./anagement)

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

(RS_t

1. Capital Goods
2. Raw l,4aterials and Components/Tradinq Goods 5,71,94.969

Iotal 5,71,94,969

NOTE 26 : EXPENDITURE/PAYMENT lN FOREIGN cURRENCY (AcCRUAL BASIS)
(As certified by the I\4anagement)

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

tRs I

Overseas Travelling
Foreign Employee Salary

Repair Charges

Rent

[,4agazine/Subscription/Off ice Registration Charges

Rates & Taxes

2,58,120
29,55,095

7,18,626
49,115
55,712
62 969

NOTE 27 : FOB VALUE OF EXPORT
(As certified by the Management)

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

(RS.l

:xport on FoB Value 2.1 1 .30,896

fotal 2,1 1,30,896

NOTE 28 : EARNING PER SHARE

PARTICULARS
For the year ended 31st March

2021

,rofit / (Loss) for the year (Rs.)

/Veighted Average No. of Shares outstanding

Earning per share - (Face Value of Share is Rs 1 00)

3asic
Diluted

23,64,930
4,06,666

5.07

5.07



NOTE 29 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

(RS.)

a.Salary & Allowances to Directors
(lncluding PF Contribution, Exgratia, Medical Benefits etc.)

b.Office Rent paid to Director/Shareholders

c.lnterest paid to Holding Company (Nagpur Power and

lndustries Ltd.) on ICD

d.Borrowings from Holding Company (Nagpur Power and

lndustries Ltd.) (Net)

f. Repayment of Borrowings to Holding Company (Nagpur Power and

lndustrres Limited) on ICD during the year

d. Legal fees paid

f.Factory Rent paid to Telemetra Systems Pvt. Ltd

42,81 ,271

96,000

41,08,061

5,00,00,000

1,85,00,000

26,288

4,069

NOTE 30 : BALANCE wlTH CO-OP. SOCIEry

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

{RS.)

Bank balance includes balance with Jhulelal Nagari Patsanstha 24,968

NOTE 31 : RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

:ollowing expenditure is incurred on Research & Development

PARTICULARS
31.03.2021

(RS.)

Revenue Expenditure

3apital Expenditure

1 ,66,77 ,511

2,71,300

Total 1,69,48,81 1

Note 32 : Deffered Tax Asset :

31.03.2021
(RS.)

The deferred tax liability comprises of the followings :

a. WDV of assets as per Companies Act 2013 eligible for Depreciation 29,61 ,161

b. WDV of assets as per computation of income tax depreciation Timing
difference between book and tax depreciation resulting in DTL/(DTA) (34,46,044)

Total - A (4,84,883)

fax effect of amount which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating
axable income : .

-eave Encashament (6,93,695)

3ratuity (1,25,613)

Iotal -B (8,19,308)

rOTAL ( A+B) (1 3,04,1 91

Rate of Tax 0

feffered Tax Liability / (Asset) (3,62,826)



INVENTORY AND TRADED GOODS :

(Taken as certified by Management.)

33.1 Turnover of Sales :

Particulars FY 2020-21

Manufacturing Sales
1. Electronics & Electrical
2. Lighting
3. Security

Products
16,14,57,289
12,77,35,836

11,27 ,810
3,25,93,643

SUB TOTAL : 16,14,57,289

Trading Goods Sales :

1. Electronics & Electrical Products
2. Security
3. Veqetable

12,79,32,256
10,94,19,538
1,62,44,843

22,67,875

TOTAL NET SALES 28,93,89,545

Add: Service lncome
Add: Commission Received

62,99,790
38,84,674

TOTAL SALES + REPAIRS CHARGES + COMMISSION 29,95,74,010

33.2 Trading Activities :

Particulars FY 2020-21
Opening Stock
Purchases
Sales
Closinq Stock

3,22,45,019
8,15,77,741

12,79,32,256
3.49,97.159



Note 34 Employee Benefits:

a)Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)

The company operates a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit based on last drawn salary for

each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is earlier.

The benefit vests after five years of continuous service. the same is funded with Life lnsurance Corporation of India

* 
ln respect to Telemetrics Eqipments Private Limited, disclosures for Defined Benefit Plan are pertaining to the entire

year ended 31 st March 2021 .f he post acqursition period was of only 19 Days. Hence acturial valuation report was

not obtained on the date of acquisition.

Reconciliation of openinq and closing balance of

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

Net actuarial (gain) / loss

Amount recognised in the Balance sheet
as at end of the

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the

ised in Statement of Profit and loss

1,25,76,875Liability at the end of the

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year.

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet



NOTE 35: OTHER NOTES

35 Principles of Consolidation

The l\,4otwane Manufacturing Company Pvt Ltd. ("the Company")has acquired 50% shares of Telemetric Equipments Pvt. Ltd. on

12th l\4arch 2021 (Dale of Acquisition).
The l\,4anagement of Telemetric Equipments Pvt. Ltd. along with the Annual Financial Statements fo( lheYeat 2020-21

hasalsopreparedStatementof ProfitandLossforthelstApril 2020to12thlvlarch2021 (Pre-AcquisitionPeriod) and

for the period 1 3.th l\4arch 2021 to 3'1st March 2021 (Post-Acquisition Period).

Similarly they have also prepared Balance-Sheet as on the Date of Acquisition (i.e. 1 2th N/arch 2021 ).

The above statements have been relied upon by us for the purpose of audit of consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated financial statements (CFS) comprises of the financial Statements of The lvlotwane Manufacturing Company Pvt. Ltd and

"Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited"'. The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting

Standardon'ConsolidatedFinancial Statements'(lNDAS110), notifiedundersectionl33oftheCompaniesAct,20l3.

a) The financial statements of "Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited"' used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that

of the Company i.e. year ended 31 st March, 2021 .

b) The financtal statements of both Companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book value of like terms of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating inter company balances, inter company transactions and unrealized profits or losses on

inter-company transactions.

c) These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) The difference between the cost of investment in the "Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited"' and the portion of equity as at the date of making

the investment is shown as Goodwill in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

e) Non Controlling lnterest represent Net Assets of "Telemetrics Equipments Private Limited"'not attributable to The Motwane Manufacturing Private

Limited



Goodwill Calculation

Cost of purchase of shares from Minority shareholdder

Less: Face value of add. Shares

Less : Preaquistion Reserves

2,87,64,425

4,32,490

1,56,33,360

Goodwill 1,26,98,575

Reserves and Surplus

Opening Reserves -Preacquisition

Profit During the year

Preacquisition
Post acquistion

Total Preacuistion reserves

Motwane Share

Non controlling interest

Equity - NCI

Total NCI

Non controlling interest - post acq

Entry
Goodwill
Reserves
Share capital

lnvestment

2,54,77,553
84,62,697

57,89,168
26,73.528

3.12,66,721

1,56.33,360.49
1,56,33,360.49

4,32,490.00
1,60,65,850.49

13,36,764

1,26,98,575
1,56,33,360

4,32,490
2,87,64,42s




